
 

 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board (1) 
 

Time and Date 
10.00 am on Wednesday, 30th March, 2022 
 
Place 
Diamond Rooms 1 and 2 - Council House 
 

Please note that in line with current Government and City Council guidelines in 
relation to Covid, there will be reduced public access to the meeting to manage 
numbers attending safely. If you wish to attend in person, please contact the 
Governance Services Officer indicated at the end of the agenda. 
 

 
 
Public Business 
 
1. Apologies and Substitutions   

 
2. Declarations of Interest   

 
3. Minutes   

 
 (a) To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2022  (Pages 

3 - 6) 
 

 (b) Matters Arising   
 

4. Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update  (Pages 7 - 46) 
 

 Briefing note  
 

5. Agile and Flexible Working Update  (Pages 47 - 54) 
 

 Briefing note 
 

6. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues  (Pages 55 - 58) 
 

 Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 

7. Any other items of Public Business   
 

 Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as matters 
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved 
 

Private Business 
 Nil 
 

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House, Coventry 
Tuesday, 22 March 2022 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Carolyn Sinclair, Governance Services, carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Membership:  
Councillors J Blundell, R Brown (By Invitation), B Gittins, P Hetherton (By Invitation), 
A Hopkins, T  Khan, R Lakha, K Maton, B Mosterman, T Sawdon and R Singh (Chair) 
 
Public Access 

Please note that in line with current Government and City Council Covid guidelines, 

there will be limited public access to the meeting to manage numbers attending safely. 

Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is required to 

contact the officer below in advance of the meeting regarding arrangements for public 

attendance. A guide to attending public meeting can be found here: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings 

 

Carolyn Sinclair 
Governance Services  
carolyn.sinclair@coventry.gov.uk 
 
 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings


 
– 1 – 

 

Coventry City Council 
Minutes of the Meeting of Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board (1) held 

at 10.00 am on Wednesday, 19 January 2022 
 

Present:  

Members: Councillor R Singh (Chair) 

 Councillor J Blundell 
Councillor B Gittins 
Councillor A Hopkins 
Councillor R Lakha 
Councillor K Maton 
Councillor T Sawdon 
 

Other Members: Councillor Brown, Cabinet Member for Strategic Finance and 
Resources 

 
Employees:  

 A Bellingeri, Customer and Business Services  
V Castree, Law and Governance  
P Jennings, Finance 
M Reeves, Chief Executive 
C Sinclair, Law and Governance 
P Ward, ICT and Digital 
 

Apologies: Councillor B Mosterman  
 

 
Public Business 
 
26. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

27. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2021 were signed as a true 
record.  There were no matters arising.  
 

28. Coventry Connects  
 
The Board considered a briefing note and presentation updating them on customer 
services, the customer journey and the emerging workstream ‘Coventry Connects’. 
 
The presentation introduced Coventry Connects principles, the approach to 
support the delivery of One Coventry aspirations, highlighted aspects that needed 
further exploration to deliver the Coventry Connects principles and explained the 
approach to developing the technology needed to make it work. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 

 
– 2 – 

 

The intention was to offer joined up service provision across the organisation and 
beyond to improve the resident experience and reduce the need for multiple 
contacts. 
 
Following the presentation, the Board asked questions and received responses 
from Officers on matters relating to: 
 

 How data was captured and used in line with GDPR requirements  

 The Council’s website – ensuring information is current and easy to 
navigate 

 Whilst enabling online functions for residents also ensure that there is an 
option to speak to a person 

 That libraries be used to support residents to engage with technology 

 Integration of data between partners including voluntary organisations. 

 Digitisation of archives  

 The importance that employees have an awareness of roles and 
responsibilities of other teams to assist in directing customers to the 
appropriate officers.  

 
The Chair expressed his concern that there had been missed opportunities over 
the last few years to use technology/digital channels to engage with and enable 
residents to access services, which officers acknowledged. The Chair asked that 
officers provide dates for actioning the improvements indicated in the presentation 
and bring a report back to a future meeting. 

RESOLVED: 

(1) To note the presentation and recommend to the Cabinet Member for 
Strategic Finance and Resources: 

a) That all Coventry libraries are enabled to support residents to 
engage digitally. 

b) That Officers investigate implementation of a system to archive 
Council documents. 

c) That Officers look at data sharing across organisations, including 
the voluntary sector. 

(2) That the Board receive 

a) A report outlining dates for progress on, and implementation of 
the technology outlined in the presentation and that a copy of the 
minutes of this meeting be appended to that report.  

b) The timescale for achieving proactive resident experience 
elements (automated outbound). 

 
29. CIPFA Financial Management Code  

 
The Board considered a briefing note in respect of the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code (FM Code).  The Code provided guidance for good and 
sustainable financial management in local authorities. By complying with the 

Page 4



 

 
– 3 – 

 

principles and standards within the code, authorities would be able to demonstrate 
their financial sustainability.  
 
The FM Code provided guidance for effective and sustainable financial 
management in local authorities, helping to provide assurance that authorities are 
managing resources effectively. 
 
The Code required authorities to demonstrate that the processes they have in 
place satisfied the principles of good financial management. It identified risks to 
financial sustainability and introduced a framework of assurance. Complying with 
the standards set out in the FM Code was the collective responsibility of elected 
members, the Chief Finance Officer and their professional colleagues in the 
leadership team. Complying with the FM Code with help strengthen the framework 
that surrounds financial decision making.  

 
The broad headings of the CIPFA FM Standards in the Code which local 
authorities should comply with were: 

 Responsibilities of the CFO and Leadership Team 

 Governance and Financial Management Style 

 Long to Medium Term Financial Management 

 The Annual Budget 

 Stakeholder Engagement and Business Plans 

 Monitoring Financial Performance 

 External Financial Reporting 

 
The first full year of compliance to the Code is 2021/22. However, CIPFA had 
reviewed this in light of the COVID-19 and concluded that ‘whilst the first full year 
of compliance can remain as 2021/2022, it can do so within a more flexible 
framework where a proportionate approach is encouraged. In practice this is likely 
to mean that that adherence to some parts of the Code will demonstrate a 
direction of travel’. 

The Council’s Senior Leadership Team had assessed the Council’s compliance 
against the Code and given each criteria a risk rating. This was shown in the table 
at Appendix A of the briefing note. This demonstrated that the Council was already 
meeting the large majority of the Code standards, with three areas rated as amber. 
Actions had been identified to address this element as well as some minor actions 
to improve performance against other areas. Overall, the Council had satisfied 
CIPFA’s requirement to demonstrate a direction of travel towards full compliance 
of the Code during 2021/22. 

It was proposed that the Council’s compliance with the FM Code was reviewed 
annually as part of the Council’s annual process to update its Annual Governance 
Statement.  

The Board considered the briefing note and in respect of the three areas rated as 
amber, agreed to receive a full update on all standards in 12 months’ time and, in 
respect of the Financial Resilience Assessment, to receive an update early in the 
new year.  
 

Page 5



 

 
– 4 – 

 

RESOLVED that the Board: 
 

 Note the contents of the assessment of the “direction of travel” 
compliance with the CIPFA Financial Management Code included in 
Appendix A. 

 

 Agree to receive an update report in January 2023, and an interim 
update on the Financial Resilience Assessment early in the new 
municipal year. 

 
30. Work Programme and Outstanding Issues  

 
The Board noted the Work Programme. 
 

31. Any other items of Public Business  
 
There were no other items of public business. 
 
 
 
 

(Meeting closed at 12.15 pm)  

  

Page 6



 Briefing note  
  

 

To:  Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny 1 
 
Date: 30 March 2022 
 

15. Subject:  Coventry City Council Apprenticeship update 
 

 

 

   
 

1 Purpose of the Note 

1.1 To provide Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 with an update on 
Coventry City Council’s internal Apprenticeship programme. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 That Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 continue to support the 
work and the achievement of the Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team within 
People & Culture in continuing to deliver a successful apprenticeship programme 
and outcomes for the Council’s apprentices in challenging circumstances 
throughout the pandemic.  

2.2 That Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 continue to support the 
aims of the Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team - in line with the Council’s 
Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022, to continue to increase traditional apprentice 
numbers beyond pre-covid levels in 2022 whilst maintaining a focus on quality, 
diversity and inclusion.  

3 Background 

3.1 The Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team within People and Culture are 
responsible for managing the Council’s Apprenticeship Programme and delivering 
the actions set out in the Council’s Apprenticeship Strategy (see appendix 1). 

3.2 The team engages with managers and services across the Council to identify 
opportunities to create new apprenticeship roles (Traditional Apprentices) and to 
match appropriate apprenticeship standards to existing roles to upskill current staff 
(Employed Apprentices). For further information on what apprenticeships are and 
the difference between Traditional and Employed Apprentices, please see appendix 
2 section 1. 

4 Traditional Apprentices 

4.1 The Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team actively engages with service areas 
across the Council to identify apprenticeship opportunities. The team works with 
managers to undertake workforce planning activities to identify how the recruitment 
of an apprentice can help with their current and future needs, including addressing 
skills gaps and succession planning. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



   
 

 2 

4.2 The team ensures the most appropriate Apprenticeship Standards are mapped to 
the apprenticeship role and support managers throughout the recruitment process.  

4.3 Following recruitment, the Apprenticeship and Career Pathways Officer will work 
with the apprentice and manager throughout the apprenticeship lifecycle to ensure 
they receive the required support to get the most out of their apprenticeship and 
move into a positive destination on completion. 

4.4 The team also provide advice and guidance to Local Authority Maintained Schools 
regarding best practice in the recruitment of apprentices. 

4.5 As of the 15/03/22 there were 92 traditional apprentices in post (32 Corporate and 
60 Maintained Schools). For a further breakdown of this information, please see 
appendix 2, sections 1 and 2. 

4.6 Covid-19 impacted Apprenticeship starts nationally across the board, with starts 
decreasing in 2020/21, compared to the same period in 2019/20. However, a 
recovery has been made with the starts for 2021/22 now back to 2019/20 levels.  

4.7 Apprenticeship starts at the Council have broadly followed this trend as can be 
seen below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.8 Following a decrease in starts related to the response to the pandemic and a shift 
to home working, apprenticeship starts have made a steady recovery: 
 

  
Apr-
Jun 20 

Jul-
Sep* 
20 

Oct-
Dec 
20 

Jan-
Mar 
21 

Apr-
Jun 21 

Jul-
Sep* 
21 

Oct-
Dec 
21 

Total 4 19 10 10 10 46 13 

Corporate 0 5 3 2 5 12 7 

Schools 4 14 7 8 5 34 6 

* Due to schools recruiting the majority of their apprentices to start each 
September, starts in this quarter are always significantly higher than others. 

 

4.9 The Council’s Apprenticeship Strategy has a target to recruit 60 corporate 
apprentices between 2020 and 2022. Despite the downturn in starts due to Covid-
19, we are now back on track and aiming to exceed the target before the end of this 

87

56

79

27

14

26

60

42

53

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

2019

2020

2021

Apprentice Starts By Calendar Year

Schools Corporate Total

Page 8



   
 

 3 

year. 
 

4.10 Outcomes 
Whilst it is important that we set targets and monitor the number of apprenticeship 
starts, equal, if not more emphasis should be placed on the destinations of our 
apprentices. 

4.11 All apprentices are recruited on fixed-term contracts that mirror the length of their 
apprenticeship training. Whilst workforce planning and career pathways for 
apprentices are discussed when first working with recruiting corporate managers, it 
is rarely possible to guarantee a role for the apprentice to move into at the point of 
recruitment. 

4.12 With the majority of corporate apprenticeships being 18 months and longer (some 
up to 4 years) there are many factors that can change in this period. The main 
difficulties faced are being able to accurately predict the required needs of the 
service at the point the apprentice finishes, as well as holding the budget for the 
post-apprenticeship position for this time.  

4.13 Despite not having a guaranteed role in place, our apprentices have very high 
positive outcomes* as shown in the graph below: 

 
 

*Positive outcome defined as: Apprentice moving into either employment, 
futher/higher education or the next level of apprenticeship upon completion. 
 

4.14 The increase and sustainment of positive outcomes in 2020 and 2021 has been 
achieved by a change of approach by the Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team. 

4.15 In addition to apprentices having redeployment status for the final 3 months of their 
apprenticeship as has been the case for many years, we ensure that whilst there 
are no guaranteed roles post-apprenticeship as stated previously, a workforce 
planning approach is taken when recruiting corporate apprentices.  
 

4.16 This change in focus to encouraging corporate managers to take a longer-term view 
of the requirements of their service has resulted in a 27% increase in the 

79.5%

94.0%

96.1%

75.0%

100%

100%

81.8%

92.1%

94.4%

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0% 90.0% 100.0%

2019

2020

2021

Traditional Apprentice Positive Outcomes 
By Calendar Year

Schools Corporate Total

Page 9



   
 

 4 

percentage of apprentices that moved into employment at the Council in 2021 
compared with 2019. 

4.17 Alongside this approach, the Apprenticeship and Career Pathways Officer meets 
with corporate apprentices and their managers throughout the apprenticeship to 
discuss the apprentice’s progress and post-apprenticeship career ambitions. 

4.18 These discussions enable actions to be taken to help meet the apprentice’s career 
goals. This can take various forms including ensuring the apprentice is obtaining 
the relevant skills, knowledge and experience to enable them to achieve their post-
apprenticeship goals; 1:1 coaching sessions; and support with applying for jobs and 
interviews. 

4.19 As well as engaging with the apprentice, the apprentice’s manager is also 
supported and encouraged to do all they can to explore the options available to 
them in keeping on their apprentice after they finish. 

4.20 Additional support and development 
In addition to advice and guidance related to the apprentice’s role and post-
apprenticeship ambitions, the Apprenticeship and Career Pathways Officer also 
provides pastoral care. This can take many forms such as general advice and 
guidance and signposting to other organisations. 

4.21 Apprentice development sessions are also arranged for apprentices, with recent 
sessions taking place on Mental Health and Finance. 

5 Employed Apprentices 

5.1 Since the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy in April 2017 we have been able 
to utilise funding to upskill current employees using Apprenticeships. 

5.2 The Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team engages with managers to identify 
where apprenticeships can be utilised to meet both the current and future needs of 
colleagues and the service.  

5.3 We work with managers to undertake workforce planning activities to identify how 
apprenticeships can help to address skills gaps, aid with succession planning and 
to develop career pathways to aid in increasing retention and meeting current and 
future predicted skills gaps. 

5.4 In addition to directly working with Heads of Service and Managers to identify 
service/role-specific apprenticeships, appraisal data is also utilised to identify trends 
in corporate learning requirements. 

5.5 As of the 15/03/22 there were 230 employed apprentices in post, undertaking 44 
different apprenticeships. For a further breakdown of this information please see 
appendix 2, section 3. 

6 Diversity and Inclusion   

6.1 The principles of Diversity and Inclusion are not only embedded within our 
Apprenticeship Strategy but are rooted in the ethos and values of the team. 

6.2 We are always working to engage with under-represented groups to widen 
participation, remove barriers and increase the diversity of our apprentices so that 
they are reflective of the communities we serve.  

6.3 A breakdown of the diversity information of our traditional apprentices can be found 
in appendix 2, section 3. 

6.4 Looked After Children/Care Leavers 
We take our responsibility as a Corporate Parent very seriously and work closely Page 10



   
 

 5 

with colleagues in Through Care and across Children’s Services to promote our 
apprenticeships to Looked After Children and Care Leavers (LAC and CL). 

6.5 The team attends the LAC/CL NEET panel to keep up to date with any LAC/CL that 
are looking for or may be suitable for apprenticeships and to bring partners up to 
date on forthcoming apprenticeship opportunities. 

6.6 An apprenticeship referral process for LAC/CL is also in place and through this the 
Apprenticeship and Career Pathways Officer will meet with LAC/CL and help them 
to apply for apprenticeships as well as giving 1:1 interview support. 

6.7 Holiday Activities & Food (HAF) Programme 
Following a call to action for support at the Council’s Skills Board, the 
Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team put themselves forward to support the new 
HAF Programme. HAF is a national programme for 5–16-year-olds who are eligible 
for Free School Meals. In addition to providing meals for the approximately 12,500 
eligible children, the remit of the programme extends to providing skills and other 
enrichment activities. The Apprenticeship Team delivered apprenticeship 
information sessions to groups on the HAF to engage and build relationships with 
young people from disadvantaged and under-represented groups. 

6.8 Engaging with Refugees and Migrants 
We work in partnership with the Migration Team and organised to meet with the 
Refugee Employment Network to get an overview of the work they are doing and 
how we can better engage with and support refugees and migrants in applying for 
our apprenticeships. Following this meeting, an apprenticeship information session 
was delivered that resulted in two refugees/migrants securing apprenticeships at 
the Council. 

6.9 Recruitment best practice 
We work closely with colleagues in the Recruitment Team and colleagues leading 
on Diversity and Inclusion within People and Culture to ensure that we are up to 
date with best practice in advertising and recruitment methods. 

6.10 We have built an extensive mailing list of all organisations and partners across the 
city that work with young people, particularly those from under-represented groups 
that we e-mail each time we advertise apprenticeship vacancies. 

6.11 Candidates that apply for our corporate apprenticeships also have an additional 
stage in the application process – the ‘pre-interview’. At this stage, shortlisted 
candidates are invited to attend a session prior to final interview where they are 
given an overview of what to expect from the interview as well as tools, tips and 
advice on how to prepare for it to give them the best possible chance of success. 

6.12 The pre-interview stage was added as it was noticed that not all applicants were 
aware of expectations of the interview process and those that did not receive 
support (such as from parents or carers) were not performing as well due to this. 

7 Marketing and event attendance 

7.1 Due to a variety of factors, the number of people searching and applying for 
apprenticeships at a national and local level has declined in recent years. In 
response to this is it important that Coventry City Council stands out in this market 
as an employer of choice for people wanting to undertake an apprenticeship. 
 

7.2 To do this we have updated and re-branded all of our physical and digital marketing 
materials with contemporary designs, featuring pictures of our diverse range of 
apprentices. Page 11



   
 

 6 

7.3 Alongside the new materials, over 20 case studies (example attached in appendix 
3) of current and ex-apprentices as well as their managers have been created to 
give an insight into what being an apprentice at Coventry City Council is like. 

7.4 We have also created an Instagram account where we post regularly about our 
vacancies, case studies and other events to engage with our target audience. 
Please see appendix 2, section 5 for further details. 

7.5 Following a decline in careers fairs and other events due to Covid-19 we attended 
or arranged and held 19 events in 2021 including 9 events at 8 of our secondary 
schools. These events ranged from apprenticeship information sessions, talks at 
assemblies, group work with students, mock interviews and attending careers fairs. 
We always take current or past apprentices to these events with us to talk directly 
to students about their experiences. 

7.6 We’ve already attended 10 events so far in 2022 and have many more already 
booked in, including the Support and Employments Job Fair organised by Coventry 
WEHM Service at Moat House Community and Leisure Centre in April. 

8 Incentive payments 

8.1 In response to Covid-19, the Government introduced Apprenticeship incentives for 
employers of up to £3000 per newly recruited apprentice. Over £230k has been 
secured by the Apprenticeship Team in total under this scheme which has gone 
towards funding apprenticeship vacancies. 

9 Levy Transfer 

9.1 Coventry City Council can transfer up to 25% of its yearly Apprenticeship Levy 
funding to non-Levy paying employers. We work in partnership with our Economic 
Development Service and the West Midlands Combined Authority (WMCA) to 
receive referrals from SMEs requiring funding. 

9.2 To date we have pledged to transfer over £325k, supporting 21 businesses and 68 
apprentices. We have prioritised Coventry businesses and residents from under-
represented groups. Please see attached case studies in appendices 4 and 5. 

9.3 As a result of the success of the Council’s Levy Transfer scheme, meetings with 
counterparts at Solihull Council and the Corporate Responsibility Manager at 
Coventry Building Society have taken place to share good practice.  

10 Work Experience 

10.1 The arrangement and administration of Work Experience placements at Coventry 
City Council sits with the Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team. Work experience 
placements were put on hold due to the organisation’s response to Covid-19 and 
the shift to remote working. Virtual work experience placements were trialled but 
found to be limited in what they could offer those undertaking them. 

10.2 Now that more colleagues are starting to return to the office and the Covid-19 
restrictions have eased, we are re-evaluating our approach to work experience 
placements. 
 

10.3 As capacity to arrange and support quality placements across the Council is limited, 
we are piloting an approach to target students from under-represented and/or 
disadvantaged backgrounds at Coventry schools.  

10.4 Arrangements for the first cohort to take place later in this academic year are 
currently being made with Eden Girls’ School. Page 12



   
 

 7 

11 Future plans 

11.1 The Apprenticeship and Early Careers Team will continue to adapt its work to the 
needs of the organisation, ensuring we align with the new People Plan and One 
Coventry Plan.  

11.2 Traditional Apprentices 
As mentioned in section 4.9 we plan to exceed the corporate apprenticeship 
recruitment target set in the Apprenticeship Strategy before the end of the year and 
continue to increase the number and variety of apprenticeship opportunities we 
offer. 

11.3 We will continue to engage with our apprentices to monitor and evaluate their 
experiences to ensure they are receiving the required support and to increase the 
quality of apprenticeships across the board. This will also involve the increase of 
‘value added’ activities such as bespoke training and development opportunities for 
apprentices and apprenticeship team-building activities. 

11.4 Further work will be undertaken to engage with and recruit applicants from under-
represented groups and facing additional barriers to employment. We will build on 
the changes to practice in attraction, recruitment and selection that have been 
implemented in corporate recruitment to ensure that the apprentices that we recruit 
are more reflective of the communities that we serve.  

11.5 Employed Apprentices 
Through workforce planning meetings with Heads of Service we will identify new 
opportunities to utilise apprenticeships to upskill our workforce. 
New apprenticeship standards are being developed regularly and we will continue 
to utilise them where there is a recognised need for them, building these into 
recognised career pathways and meeting future workforce skills needs. 
 
 

 
 
 

Andy Hyland 
Workforce Planning & Apprenticeship Advisor 
People and Culture 
02476 972359 / Andy.Hyland@coventry.gov.uk 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



      

Our 
Apprenticeship

Strategy
2020 - 2022

Develop Grow Achieve

P
age 15



Contents
Foreward 1

Our commitment 2

Business case 3

Apprenticeships can help by 4

Our aims 5

Method 6

Apprenticeship programme overview 7

Success measure and action plan 8-13

Appendix 1 14

P
age 16



Foreword
As part of our ‘One Coventry’ approach, we are developing how we view modern 
employment routes into the organisation by embedding apprenticeships and 
work placements within our people strategies for young people who are aged 16 - 
24. We want to provide a modern employment offer and viable routes into  and up 
through the organisation for both existing and new employees.

The public sector apprenticeship targets were 
introduced by Government in April 2017 and sets 
a target for any public sector employer in England 
with at least 250 employees to employ an average 
of 2.3% of their headcount as new apprentices 
between 1 April 2017 and March 2021.

Where we are now:

• Between 2017-2019 we employed on  
average 1% (49) of our headcount as new 
corporate apprentices

• We currently have 20 strategy funded 
apprenticeship posts and are reliant on service 
areas to create further opportunities to increase 
the apprenticeship talent pool

• 4.05% of the council’s workforce are aged 
between 16-24, whereas 47% are aged over 50, 
which suggests a risk of skills and knowledge 
deficit over the next 10 years if not addressed

• In March 2018 - March 2019, there were 312 
Grade 2/3 posts recruited to, which presents 
an opportunity to develop a talent pipeline 
for future talent, improve the diversity of our 
workforce and lead the way in the public sector.

Where do we want to be:

We want to attract and develop future talent
within the council, by providing a structured 
apprenticeship programme for 16-24 year olds 
which retains, develops and provides transferrable 
skills needed to succeed in the modern economy, 
while contributing to our commitment to increase 
the overall number of apprenticeships across the 
council to 2.3 % of the workforce by 2022.

Martin Reeves
Chief Executive

Coventry City Council

Councillor John Mutton
Cabinet Member for Strategic 

Finance & Resources

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 1

P
age 17



Our commitment
The council’s Apprenticeship Strategy is about more than 
just
numbers. It is our commitment as an employer to improve 
social mobility within our communities and strengthen the 
skills base of the organisation, through high quality learning 
opportunities that are embedded in professional career 
paths for 16-24 year olds. The key aims, measures, benefits 
and actions are listed within the action plan and will be 
overseen by our Cabinet Member.
This strategy outlines what we want to 
achieve with our apprenticeships over the 
next two years' at Coventry City Council. To 
keep us on track  the strategy will be 
regularly reviewed and  where appropriate 
developed to reflect local  and national 
changes. Our aim is to promote  wider 
access to apprenticeships across
all communities in the city, upskill existing 
employees and to increase the number
of apprenticeships undertaken by young 
people between the ages of 16-24 within the 
council.

Working with a range 
of service areas and 
external partners, we 
will actively promote the 
benefits of apprenticeships 
to all, make the connection 
to the development of local skills, 
workforce development and the 
local economy by identifying and 
addressing gaps in delivery to create 
more apprenticeship opportunities within the 
council and across the city.

  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 2

P
age 18



Business case
The council’s People Plan sets out our commitment to develop ways to ensure 
that our employees have the right skills and attributes we need to deliver council 
services over the next few years in a fast-changing environment. A key aim of 
our Apprenticeship Strategy is to ensure that by the end of their apprenticeship, 
apprentices are able to demonstrate professional skills and attributes, as 
signaled by their completion certificate. 

Through increasing the range and extent of 
apprenticeship opportunities, the council can help 
to improve the skills base of its own workforce and 
those across the city by utilising the apprenticeship 
levy and working with external partners, thereby 
contributing to the narrowing of skills gaps between 
the most affluent wards and the most  
deprived wards.

According to the city’s latest joint ‘Strategic Needs 
Assessment’, over one-third of the city’s working 
age population is highly qualified. However, there 
are significant pockets of deprivation which limit 
people’s opportunities to succeed in life. In 2018, 
35% of Coventry’s working age population were 
qualified to level 4 or above, which means they 
have a foundation degree or above. This has 
increased by over 10 percentage points over the 
past decade and the city is the second highest 
within the West Midlands, 10% of the city’s working 
age population has no qualifications at all. This 
may limit their ability to gain more rewarding 
employment in the city or push them to be 
redeployed as the city’s jobs increasingly require 
qualified people.

Lack of educational attainment and low 
aspirations are major causes of a wide range of 
social disadvantages later in life, including poor 
employment prospects, social alienation and 
mental and physical health problems. To help 
people realise their full potential in life, these 
barriers should be addressed through championing 
high levels of educational attainment and raising 
their aspirations.

Despite the presence of two top universities and 
the network of prestigious companies based 
in the city and region, there is pessimism 
amongst some young people regarding their 
career opportunities. Some young people 
are unaware of the city’s growing advanced 
manufacturing sector and the successful 
games industry in the sub-region. Young 
people’s aspirations could be raised by 
improving their awareness of the significant 
and growing opportunities in highly paid jobs 
available in the city, and the companies’ need 
for people with the right skills  
and qualifications.

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 3

P
age 19



Apprenticeships  
can help by:
• Presenting an opportunity to improve the diversity and inclusion  

of the workforce 

• Upskilling the workforce 

• Attracting and retaining talent

• Strengthening the talent pipeline

• Reducing employee turnover

• Increasing potential earning salaries

• Filling internal skills and role gaps

• Improving employee engagement and performance

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 4

P
age 20



Our Aims
Key aims of our strategy: 

Develop skills and attributes

• Upskilling and helping our apprentices 
by providing high quality apprenticeship 
training at a variety of levels

• Create career pathways for each service 
area mapped to the apprenticeship 
qualifications, enabling all employees’ 
access to further education and skills, 
therefore contributing to the council’s 
‘Grow Our Own’ workforce initiative

Grow the number of apprenticeships

• Developing an apprenticeship culture   
by utilising apprentices as a tool  
to support strategic workforce and 
succession planning

• Enhancing our reputation as an employer 
of choice by promoting apprenticeships 
to partners within the community

• Increasing the range of vocational areas 
in which apprenticeships are offered

Embed apprenticeships

• Working with the organisation to identify 
skills gaps and opportunities to utilise and 
retain apprentices as part of our people 
strategy, talent management and  
career pathways

 

 

 

 

• Promoting the council’s ‘Grow Our Own’
workforce planning initiatives in each 
service area and supporting apprentices 
who seek to secure progression to 
permanent employment in the council

Promote, equality, diversity and inclusion 
and social mobility

• Widening participation in the council’s
apprenticeship programme by targeting 
underrepresented groups of young 
people such as looked-after young
people, Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic 
young people (BAME), young people with 
SEND, Carers, NEETs, and young 
refugees

• We will ensure that apprenticeships are
a key component of an inclusive council 
which represents and reflects the diversity
and inclusivity of our diverse communities

Improve the quality of apprenticeships

• Develop and apply robust systems
for monitoring the quality of the 
apprenticeship experience, ensuring
that improvements are implemented in a 
timely and rigorous manner

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 5

P
age 21



Method
We will create opportunities for apprenticeships by:    

 

 

 

   

  
 

 

   
  

Offering our current workforce, opportunities
to upskill and gain new qualifications via the 
apprenticeship levy

• Utilising the apprenticeship levy qualifications
to target skills shortages, personal/professional 
development and provide opportunities for
employees at all levels across the council

Developing our current apprenticeship scheme

• Providing quality training and development
throughout the apprenticeship programme to 
ensure apprentices between the ages of 16-24 
have adequate support.This will include 
on-the-job training, mentor support, skills 
development training and a comprehensive 
induction

Promoting apprenticeships internally
and externally for 16-24 year olds

• Actively working with service areas to create
talent pipelines that are aligned with our
career pathways

• Identifying opportunities to appoint
apprenticeships to service areas with hard to fill 
roles and skills shortages

• Working with external partners to promote
our apprenticeship programme and
vacancies available

In order to develop apprenticeship opportunities 
further, apprenticeships will be embedded within our 
people, talent management strategies and career 
pathways. This will be achieved by strategic workforce 
planning to identify the council’s workforce gaps and 
utilise apprentices to grow and upskill the shortfall.

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 6

P
age 22



 Apprenticeship
development programme

Additional training such as learning a new skill, 
mental health awareness, CV and interview
skills, facilitation skills and an introduction to 
equality, diversity and inclusion.

Apprenticeship induction

An Induction which will provide 
new apprentices with an overview 
of their apprenticeship programme, 
the council and an opportunity to 
network with other apprentices.

Mentor and coaching 

A dedicated mentor to support 
and offer guidance and direction 
throughout the programme.

Recognised 
qualification

Support to gain 
a functional 
skill and work 
towards gaining 
a recognised 
qualification.

Apprenticeship 
programme 
overview
Our comprehensive apprenticeship programme provides 
opportunities for apprentices between the ages of 16-24 
to gain a recognisedqualification whilst receiving 
training to support their  personal development 
throughout their journey.

Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 7

Recruitment/onboarding

A dedicated recruitment/onboarding 
window for new apprentices to 
apply and begin their employment 
journey with the council.

P
age 23



  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 8

Success measures and action plan

Aim Benefit Measure Action Accountability Timescale

1 Develop skills 
and attributes

1.1 We will upskill and help 
our new and existing 
apprentices and 
employees by  providing 
high quality 
apprenticeship training at 
a variety of levels  

Maximise the use of 
the Apprenticeship 
Levy and increase the 
skills and professional 
qualifications of 
employees within the 
council 

Track the number 
of apprenticeship 
qualifications gained 
and offered across the 
council aiming for 100% 
coverage.

Increased use of the 
Apprenticeship Levy

Engage with training 
providers to ensure that 
training meets the skills 
gaps identified within the 
council, offering a range 
of qualifications at all 
levels.

Ensure that new 
standards being made 
available through the 
Levy are considered and 
promoted across the 
organisation

Organisational 
Development

Monthly - ongoing 
as new standards 
and training 
provision increases.

March 2022

1.2 Creating career 
pathways for 16- 24 year 
olds in each  service area 
mapped to 
apprenticeship

 qualifications, enabling 
access to further
education and skills,
therefore  contributing to 
the council’s ‘Grow Our 
Own’ workforce initiative

Enable service areas 
to identify skills gaps, 
embed apprenticeships 
into their workforce 
planning and provide 
a clear pathway for 
employees to progress 
within the council 
creating a talent pipeline

Produce clear entry 
career pathways for each 
service area and provide 
workforce data to identify 
opportunities for new 
and existing apprentices  
to progress within the 
council

Engage with each service 
area to map and create 
career pathways aligned 
to the apprenticeship 
standards

Organisational 
Development 

March 2022

P
age 24



Success measures and action plan

2 Growing apprenticeships

2.1 Promoting the council’s 
‘Grow Our Own’ 
workforce initiatives 
in each service area 
and supporting 
apprentices who seek 
to secure progression to 
permanent employment 
in the council

Provide talent and 
succession opportunities 
across the council to 
nurture talent and reduce 
the councils ageing 
workforce

Work with apprentices &
service areas to secure 
permanent employment 
for at least 50% of 
apprentices at the end of 
their training

Ensure that all vacancies, 
at the appropriate level 
and where a relevant 
standard can be applied, 
are considered for an 
apprenticeship. 

Develop a talent pool for 
future applicants

Organisational 
Development 

March 2022

2.2 Apprentices are identified 
and recruited as part of 
the service areas talent 
and succession plan, 
with a development role 
in place at the end of the 
programme.

Identify opportunities for 
apprentices to replace 
Grade 2/3 posts where 
possible

Promote career 
progression within the 
Council and create an 
internal talent pool

Increase the number of 
apprentices recruited to 
posts Graded 2 & 3.

Increase in number of 
apprentice starts by 1.3% 
(60) corporately

Create clear measurable 
development roles for 
apprentices from the 
recruitment stage

Recruitment Team 
Job Shop
Organisational 
Development

March 2022

  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 9

P
age 25



  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 10

Success measures and action plan

2.3 To enhance our 
reputation as an 
employer of choice 
by promoting 
apprenticeships to 
partners within the 
community

Attract future talent to 
the council, provide job 
opportunities and boost 
the local economy

Produce analysis which 
includes the tracking 
of applicants and 
expressions of interest

 

 
 
 
 

Draw up an annual 
calendar of events and 
activities to promote 
apprenticeships 
including:

• School heads
meetings

• Career workshops
• Job Shop
• Recruitment fairs
• Open Days

Work with councillors
to promote the 
apprenticeship 
programme across
the city

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

2.4 Increasing the range of 
vocational areas in which 
apprenticeships are 
offered

Opportunity for 
employees to develop 
a new skill and gain a 
recognised qualification.

Increase skillsets for 
employees across the 
organisation

Tracking of 
apprenticeship 
qualifications available 
and map at least one 
apprenticeship standard 
to each service area 
where possible as part of 
the workforce planning

Engage with service 
areas to identify 
the workforce skills 
shortages and 
opportunity to utilise the 
apprenticeship levy.

Embed apprenticeship 
qualifications into the 
appraisal system.

Report on appraisal 
training needs and 
target services areas 
where apprenticeship 
standards may fulfill their 
requirement

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

P
age 26



  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 11

Success measures and action plan

3 Embedding 
apprenticeships

3.1 Working with the 
organisation to identify 
skills gaps and 
opportunities to utilise 
and retain apprentices 
as part of our people  
plan, talent 
management and 
career pathways

Address skills gaps 
increase retention 
and provide career 
development 
opportunities

Skills gap analysis
Recruitment and 
retention data

Gain Senior Management 
(SMB) buyin by 
presenting the aims and 
vision of the strategy.

Present at DMT level to 
identify opportunities to 
recruit apprentices.

Gather and analyse 
workforce data for 
each service area, 
identifying opportunity 
to utilise apprentices as 
part of their talent and 
succession planning.

Colloborate with the 
recruitment team as part 
of the above

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

P
age 27



  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 12

Success measures and action plan

4 Promoting equality, 
diversity and inclusion - 
add social mobility

4.1 Widening participation
in the council’s 
apprenticeship 
programme and targeting 
underrepresented groups 
of young people such
as looked-after young 
people, Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic young 
people (BAME), young 
people with SEND, 
Carers, NEETs, and 
young  refugees

Providing apprenticeship 
opportunities for 16-24 
year olds  from all 
backgrounds  within the 
local community

To increase the equality 
employee data held 
to 85%

Work with Children’s 
Services and other  
internal and external 
partner agencies  and 
organisations to  target 
under-represented 
groups.

Regularly monitor and 
evaluate to ensure there 
is a fair representation 
across the council. See 
Appendix 1 for a current 
data snapshot

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

4.2 We will ensure that 
apprenticeships are 
a key component of 
an inclusive council 
which represents and 
reflects the diversity and 
inclusivity of our city

Coventry City Council 
seen as an inclusive 
employer of choice

Apprenticeships 
embedded within the 
quality, diversity and 
inclusion strategy

Monitor the diversity of all 
apprenticeship starts, to 
enable a more inclusive 
workforce and social 
mobility throughout  
the council.

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

P
age 28



  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 13

Success measures and action plan

5 Monitor the quality of 
apprenticeships

5.1 Develop and apply 
robust systems for 
monitoring the quality 
of the apprenticeship 
experience, ensuring 
that improvements are 
implemented in a timely 
and rigorous manner

To ensure apprentices 
receive quality training, 
development and 
support throughout 
the apprenticeship 
programme

Evaluation stats.

Feedback reports from 
training providers and 
apprentices.

To achieve at least 85% 
of all feedback as ‘Good’ 
or above

Engage with training 
providers to agree 
service level agreements 
and to ensure high 
quality training and 
support for apprentices.

Produce annual 
apprenticeship report

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

5.2 Monitor retention 
and achievement of 
apprentices

Engaged apprentices 
who  feel valued.

Reduced turnover of 
apprentices

Engagement surveys  
and exit interviews.

Achieve minimum of  
50% retention

Establish tracking 
systems to monitor 
retention and 
achievement.

Conduct exit interviews 
for apprentices leaving 
the organisation.

The council’s Future 
Talent Board will monitor 
the progress and 
implementation of the 
Apprenticeship Strategy

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

5.3 Improve consistency of 
placement support

Reduced turnover.

Consistent, quality 
placement experience 
for the apprentice and 
clear guidance for the 
manager

Apprenticeship feedback, 
progress tracker.

Achieve satisfaction  of 
‘Good’ or above as 
overall support whilst on 
programme.

Provide training/guidance 
to placement managers

Organisational 
Development

March 2022

P
age 29



Appendix 1 Equality data - March 2019

White - Other

White British

Unknown

Mixed - Other Mixed

Black/Black British - Other

Asian/Asian British - Other 

Asian/Asian British - Indian 

Asian/Asian British - Pakistani

Other Ethnic Groups

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

4.3%

5.1%

47%

36.8%

0.9%

3.4%

0.9%

0.9%

0.9%

  Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022 | 14

79

38

Number of 
apprentices  
on programme 
- March 2019

  Corporate

  Schools

Core Council/School Age Band Headcount Percentage

Core Council 16-24 29 76.32%

25-29 5 13.16%

30-44 4 10.53%

Core Council 38 100.00%

Core Council/School Disability Status Headcount Percentage

Core Council Disabled 1 2.63%

Not Disabled 33 86.84%

Unknown 4 10.53%

Core Council 38 100.00%

School Disabled 1 1.27%

Not Disabled 43 54.43%

Unknown 35 44.30%

School 79 100.00%

School 16-24 53 67.09%

25-29 4 5.06%

30-44 21 26.58%

45-59 1 1.27%

School 79 100.00%

Age analysis - March 2019 Disability analysis - March 2019

P
age 30



P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 What is an Apprenticeship? 
 

1.1 An apprenticeship combines hands-on work with the opportunity to train and 
obtain qualifications: ‘Earning whilst you learn’. Apprenticeships are paid 
positions of employment that must last a minimum of 12 months and can be up 
to 5 years. 
 

1.2 At least 20% of an apprentice’s paid working time must be set aside for ‘off the 
job’ training. This is learning that can take a variety of forms such as classroom 
based or online learning, or work-based projects relevant to the apprenticeship. 
 

1.3 There are over 600 Apprenticeship Standards are available, with new 
standards constantly in development. Apprenticeships are available across all 
industries and sectors with the level of learning ranging from Level 2 (GCSE) to 
Level 7 (Master’s Degree). 
 

1.4 The definition of ‘Apprentice’ has changed in recent years. The introduction of 
the Apprenticeship Levy in 2017 not only marked a shift in the way 
apprenticeships are funded, but it also changed the definition of who is an 
apprentice, creating two types of apprentice: 
 
Traditional Apprentices 
This is a continuation of the historic understanding of what an apprenticeship is; 
an entry-level position on an apprenticeship contract. 
 
Employed Apprentices 
These types of apprentice started in 2017 following the introduction of the 
Apprenticeship Levy; they are current members of staff that are utilising the 
funding available through the Apprenticeship Levy to upskill by undertaking an 
apprenticeship.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



2 Breakdown of traditional apprentices in post on 15/03/22 by 
Apprenticeship Standard and Level:   
 

Apprenticeship Title and Level Number 

Assistant Accountant - Level 3 1 

Associate Project Manager - Level 4 2 

Business Administrator - Level 3 14 

Civil Engineering Technician - Level 3  1 

Construction Site Engineering Technician - Level 4 1 

Customer Service Practitioner - Level 2 5 

Digital Marketer - Level 3  1 

Early Years Educator - Level 3 8 

Early Years Practitioner - Level 2 6 

Facilities Services Operative - Level 2 1 

Heavy Vehicle Service and Maintenance Technician - Level 3 2 

Installation Electrician and Maintenance Electrician - Level 3 2 

Junior Content Producer - Level 3 1 

Learning Mentor - Level 3 1 

Marketing Assistant - Level 3 1 

Payroll Administrator – Level 3  4 

Plumbing and Domestic Heating Technician - Level 3 2 

Supporting Teaching and Learning in Physical Education - Level 3 6 

Supporting Teaching and Learning in Schools - Level 3 33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 34



3 Diversity breakdown of traditional apprentices in post on 15/03/22:   
 

 Corporate Maintained 

Schools 

Total 

Age*       

16-18 16 

(50.0%) 

27 

45.0%) 

43 

(46.0%) 

19-24 12 

(37.5%) 

20 

(33.3%) 

32 

(34.8%) 

25+ 4 

(12.5%) 

13 

(21.7%) 

17 

(18.5%) 

Sex    

Female 17 

(53.1%) 

48 

(80.0%) 

65 

(70.7%) 

Male 15 

(46.9%) 

12 

(20.0%) 

27 

(29.3%) 

Ethnicity    

Black, Asian & 

Minority Ethnic 

10 

(31.3%) 

2 

(3.7%) 

12 

(14.0%) 

White 22 

(68.8%) 

52 

(96.3%) 

74 

(86.0%) 

Disability 

status 

   

Yes 1 

(3.1%) 

2 

(4.3%) 

3 

(3.8%) 

No 31 

(96.9%) 

44 

(95.7%) 

75 

(96.2%) 

Looked After 

Child/Care 

Leaver 

   

Yes 3 

(9.4%) 

1 

(1.7%) 

4 

(4.3%) 

No 29 

(90.6%) 

59 

(98.3%) 

88 

(95.7%) 

* At start of employment 

Please note data does not include unknown records. (Missing ethnicity records for 6 

school apprentices and disability records for 13 school apprentices) 

Page 35



4 Breakdown of employed apprentices in post on 15/03/22 by 
Apprenticeship Standard and Level:   
 

Apprenticeship Title and Level Number 

Associate Project Manager – Level 4 39 

Social Worker (Degree) – Level 6 27 

Adult Care Worker – Level 2 24 

Operations / Departmental Manager (CMI) – Level 5 18 

Team Leader / Supervisor (CMI) – Level 3 14 

Senior Leader (Master’s) – Level 7 12 

Children, Young People & Families Practitioner – Level 4 9 

Business Analyst – Level 4 8 

HR Consultant / Partner (CIPD) – Level 5 7 

Lead Adult Care Worker – Level 3 6 

Children, Young People & Families Manager – Level 5 5 

Teacher – Level 6 5 

32 other Apprenticeship Standards with less than 5 people on each 56 

Total 230 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



5 Instagram overview 
 

https://www.instagram.com/apprenticeships_ccc/ 

Follow us @apprenticeship_ccc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

https://www.instagram.com/apprenticeships_ccc/


This page is intentionally left blank



What does your apprenticeship involve on a day-to-day basis? 
“I carry out a variety of tasks in my apprenticeship depending on what 
needs to be done that day; this could be something I do on a regular 
basis or something I’ve never done before. An example of a task I 
undertake regularly is posting expense claims for foster carers on our 
system and then logging the claim on our tracking document.”

What is the most interesting part of your apprenticeship?
“The most interesting part of my role in Finance Support is being able 
to see the inner workings of a large organisation and how funds are 
managed and used within the Council.”

How will your Apprenticeship help you with your future career? 
“This apprenticeship will help me in my future career by allowing me 
to learn the necessary skills and then be able to apply them in day to 
day work while being supported by both the my team and training 
provider.”

Usama
Finance Apprentice

Finance Support 

P
age 39



What does your apprenticeship involve on a day-to-day basis? 
"My apprenticeship varies day-to-day as there are multiple tasks and projects 
happening for me to get involved in. In the first few months of my apprenticeship I 
was involved in the works on the ring road which was a big project to be exposed 
to so early on. Within the highways there are multiple teams, meaning all the 
work is different, so one day I could be working in structures, doing bridge or wall 
inspections and the next I could be in footways doing levelling or organising a 
scheme. The variety of work allows me to challenge myself whilst also learning 
new skills and seeing all the different aspects of the job."

What do you find most interesting about your apprenticeship?
"The most interesting part of my role is the variety of the tasks, there is always 
something new to do and be a part of. This allows me to be able to learn a lot 
from not only from my training ,but working alongside the skilled and experienced 
engineers who take time to explain and show me the correct way to handle 
tasks.”

How is your apprenticeship helping you with your career goals?
“My apprenticeship gives me the opportunity to learn and develop my skills and 
knowledge in my chosen career of Civil Engineering. It gives me a good overview 
of the industry.”

Finlay
Highways Technical Apprentice

Highways Technical Team

P
age 40



What does your apprenticeship involve on a day-to-day basis?
"My day-to-day tasks are to index Free School Meals (FSM) e-mails and 
inputting Change of Circumstance forms on our system. We make sure 
that the school are receiving the correct FSM funding and have the right 
information for the children on their database.”

What do you find most interesting about your apprenticeship?
"The most interesting thing about my apprenticeship is supporting 
customers through the application process. This allows me to learn more 
about the services we offer to customers and what they are eligible to 
apply for.”

How will your Apprenticeship help you with your future career?

“My apprenticeship will help me progress in my future career as I can 

support people in the right way and learn more throughout this 

experience. I am excited to grow as an individual as well as make a 

positive impact for our customers. I also think this a great opportunity for 

me to expand my knowledge and skills as well as push myself further in a 

great department.”

Jasmine
Apprentice Benefits Officer
Revenues & Benefits

P
age 41



What does your apprenticeship involve on a day-to-day basis? 
“As a Digital Marketing Apprentice my role focusses on social media and 
marketing activities promoting the work of the Employer Hub. This involves 
creating promotional material for upcoming job opportunities, events and 
other programmes advertised through The Job Shop. 
Recently I have also been liaising directly with customers and supporting them 
with any queries through various social media platforms.”

What was your experience like in the first month of your apprenticeship ?
"Within my first month at the council, I was welcomed by many friendly faces 
and an amazing team. As a recent school leaver, it took some time to adjust to 
my new surroundings, but I can now say that I am growing in confidence daily, 
and this is something that has been fed back to myself and my manager 
through various colleagues and would not have been possible without the 
support from my team.”

What do you find most interesting about your apprenticeship?
"I have found it interesting learning about different roles within different 
sectors and what qualifications and experience are required. 
Additionally, I have also found that I enjoy having the option for hybrid 
working, spending some days at the Job Shop and others working from home.”

Medina
Digital Marketing Apprentice

Employer Hub

P
age 42



  
 

Coventry City Council's Apprenticeship Levy Transfer 

CASE STUDY – SOCIETY FOR THE ENVIRONMENT 

Coventry City Council (CCC) transfers its available apprenticeship levy fund to support small 
to medium sized enterprises (SMEs) who are non-levy-paying businesses. The funding is 
available for eligible SMEs in Coventry or SMEs outside of the city who employ Coventry 
residents. It supports employers to employ individuals and helps to develop their skills whilst 
gaining a recognised qualification.  

The scheme supports a variety of apprenticeship programmes, 
upskilling existing members of staff or new recruits. 

CCC is keen to make its Apprenticeship Levy Fund Programme support 
as many businesses and residents of Coventry as possible. It is 
particularly interested in transferring its funds to employers that can 
commit to recruiting people from Coventry as apprentices for care 
leavers, young people, particularly who are not in education, 
employment or training (NEETs), parents or carers returning to work 
and people with disabilities. 

 
Society for the Environment 
 
Coventry & Warwickshire Chamber of Commerce Training is working in partnership with CCC 
to promote the CCC Apprenticeship Levy Fund Transfer. One example of a company that has 
recently accessed the apprenticeship levy funding is Society for the Environment, the body 
responsible for the registration of environmental professionals. The funding was used to recruit 
an apprenticeship opportunity for Katie Wilcox who pursued a Business Administration Level 
3 Apprenticeship.  
  
During the apprenticeship programme, Katie developed her communication skills and the 
correct use of business etiquette. Using her ICT enhanced skills; she has developed the 
company website and learnt how to create video and podcasts to use across social media. 
The apprenticeship training has helped Katie to become more productive, more independent 
and able to take on more responsibility within in her role. 
 

Commenting on the successful access of Coventry City Council’s 
Apprenticeship Levy Fund Transfer, Elaine Rutherford (left), Operations 
Manager at Society for the Environment said: “Coventry City Council have 
been excellent in helping the Society to arrange funding, especially during 
lockdown. Having invested time and energy to find the right course for 
Katie, the funding has been invaluable as it has helped to plug the skills 
gap in the organisation, identify talent in other areas which have opened 
up exciting opportunities. It has greatly improved our company 
performance, accuracy and quality of work.  I would recommend all 
companies to follow suit in applying for funding. Chamber Training’s 
apprenticeship programme has certainly helped Katie to become more 
productive and supported her with taking on additional responsibilities.” 

 

Elaine Rutherford 

Page 43



  
 

 
Commenting on the skills she has gained during her apprenticeship, Katie 
Wilcox said: “This training has really pushed me to learn new skills within my 
job role, boosting my capabilities and potential, and teaching me that self-
improvement is the key to success in everything that I do.” 

 
Natalie Lane, an Account Manager at Chamber Training, 
said: “Coventry City Council is supporting small to medium 
businesses to acquire the skills they need to thrive. It’s a simple, straight 
forward process to request the apprenticeship levy funding and it can really 
make an impact on the future success of your business. We are delighted 
that Society for the Environment was able to take on Katie as an apprentice 
and we wish her all the best in her chosen career path.” 
 

To find out more about Coventry City Council’s Apprenticeship Levy Transfer Scheme please 
contact Anne-Marie Tranter on anne-marie.tranter@coventry.gov.uk or 07973 260583.  
 

Katie Wilcox 

Natalie Lane 

Page 44

mailto:anne-marie.tranter@coventry.gov.uk


  
 

Coventry City Council's Apprenticeship Levy Transfer 

CASE STUDY – GENESIS TECHNICAL SYSTEMS 

Coventry City Council (CCC) transfers its available apprenticeship levy fund to support small 
to medium sized enterprises (SMEs) who are non-levy-paying businesses. The funding is 
available for eligible SMEs in Coventry or SMEs outside of the city who employ Coventry 
residents. It supports employers to employ individuals and helps to develop their skills whilst 
gaining a recognised qualification.  

The scheme supports a variety of apprenticeship programmes, 
upskilling existing members of staff or new recruits. 

CCC is keen to make its Apprenticeship Levy Fund Programme 
support as many businesses and residents of Coventry as possible. 
It is particularly interested in transferring its funds to employers that 
can commit to recruiting people from Coventry as apprentices for 
care leavers, young people, particularly who are not in education, 
employment or training (NEETs), parents or carers returning to 
work and people with disabilities. 

 

Genesis Technical Systems 

Genesis Technical Systems is a Coventry based employer, with 23 employees and has 
benefited from Coventry City Council’s Apprenticeship Levey Transfer scheme. 

Genesis Technical Systems is a provider of patented award-winning technology, creating 
cutting-edge broadband solutions that enable fixed and wireless operators to cost effectively 
deliver ultra-fast mobile and fixed broadband services, over existing networks to meet 
increasing broadband traffic demands. 
 

Carriers and Service Providers face the ongoing challenge of delivering more for less including 
higher bandwidth broadband and a greater range of content services, at a cost-effective price. 
Genesis addresses these challenges by enabling its customers to deliver fibre-like bandwidth 
over existing networks for a fraction of the cost and significantly increasing average revenue 
per user. 
 
Fast broadband is taken for granted by those that have it, but it remains a major frustration for 
those that don’t. The Genesis vision is to enable affordable, sustainable, life enhancing 
broadband (mobile and fixed) for everyone. Through improved connectivity individuals can 
enjoy the benefits of improved media content services, as well as support for teleworking, 
online health services and much more. 
 

Owen Collings, Business Administrator Apprentice, was an existing employee starting in July 
2018 as an engineer and moved to Business Admin apprenticeship in September 2020 at 
Genesis who is being supported on a Level 3 Business Administrator Apprenticeship with 
Coventry College delivering the training.  The standard supports Business Administrators to 
have a highly transferable set of knowledge, skills and behaviours that can be applied in all 
sectors. This includes small and large businesses alike; from the public sector, private sector 

Page 45



  
 

and charitable sector. Owen’s role involves developing, implementing, maintaining and 
improving administrative services. Business Administrators develop key skills and behaviours 
to support their own progression towards management responsibilities. 
 

The responsibilities of the role are to support and engage with different parts of the 
organisation and interact with internal stakeholders or external customers. With a focus on 
adding value, the role of Business Administrator contributes to the efficiency of an 
organisation, through support of functional areas, working across teams and resolving issues 
as requested. The flexibility and responsiveness required allows the apprentice to develop a 
wide range of skills. 
 

Owen’s training started in September 2020 and Owen has 18 months to complete this. 
Owen, pictured below, commented “The training is providing me with an exciting opportunity 
to develop my skills. I can learn and can see the impact straight away in my day-to-day role. 
Everyone has been really supportive and helped me not only grow my skillset but helped me 
grow as a person and this wouldn’t have been possible without the apprenticeship levy”.  
 
Commenting on the successful access of Coventry City Council’s Apprenticeship Levy Fund 
Transfer Liz Box, responsible for Business Development and Marketing at Genesis “The 
process was very clear and easy to follow. Any questions were answered quickly. It is great 
that employers have access to this scheme. In a short space of time, I have seen Owen 
grow and develop and he has become an asset to my team. It’s also personally rewarding to 
be able to share my experiences and knowledge and see Owen progress.” 

 

Owen Collings 

To find out more about Coventry City Council’s Apprenticeship Levy Transfer Scheme please 
contact Anne-Marie Tranter on anne-marie.tranter@coventry.gov.uk or 07973 260583.  

Page 46

mailto:anne-marie.tranter@coventry.gov.uk


 Briefing note  
  

 

To: Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1             
 
Date: 30 March 2022 
 
Subject:  Agile and Flexible Working Update 
 

 

 
1 Purpose of the Note 

   
The purpose of this update is to provide Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 
on the changing working practices agile and flexible working has created during the 
pandemic and subsequently in relation to the workforce post Covid. 

 

2 Recommendations 
 
Finance and Corporate Services Scrutiny Board 1 are being asked to provide feedback on 
the proposed changes to the flexible working arrangements and note the other impacts on 
casework and sickness based on the supporting evidence gathered over the last 24 months. 
 

3    Background and context  
 

3.1 Prior to the pandemic, the City Council operated a flexible working policy which enabled 
employees in line with legislation to be able to apply to work on a flexible basis after 12 
months in service. There were a number of recognised options including part time hours, 
compressed working week, job share, term time working, flexitime which were subject to 
line management approval based on service need.   
 

3.2 Over the last two years over half the workforce has worked from home due to the pandemic 
and subsequent restrictions. This change occurred overnight, underpinned by the 
technology available ;laptops, Teams access and Sharepoint. It is accepted this was a 
steep learning curve for all but despite this productivity did not decrease and ‘work rounds’ 
were found for tasks that could not be undertaken as they were previously in the light of the 
various restrictions.  

 
Keeping the workforce as safe and as well as possible regardless of the environment or 
location they were working in has been key over the last two years. So, for the those who 
remained in the workplace this meant appropriate PPE, risk assessments and following the 
latest public health advice.  

This was no different for those staff working from home, risk assessments to determine 
equipment needs were undertaken, display screen and workstation set up advice provided 
and a system for the supply of necessary kit was established. Regular updates were also 
provided as reminders, plus the creation of the ‘Flexible Toolkit’ to provide advice to 
manager and employees on the options and potential solutions. A good example being 
converting annual leave into hours, which is being retained going forward. 

 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

4.     Support. 

Based on the three ‘pulse’ surveys undertaken during the pandemic helped us to establish 

what support was needed to help keep them safe and well going forward as well as the 

changes needed to embed a flexible and agile workforce as part of the new ‘normal. 

The wish to retain and/or extend flexible working has been consistent during the last 2 years 

and this is supported by the pulse survey feedback.   

The feedback from the pulse surveys and focus groups of frontline managers and 
supervisors indicated the need to review and revise the Flexible Working Policy. A first draft 
was shared with trade union colleagues, after further consultation it was agreed the toolkit 
that had been developed during COVID would be better suited for the aims and objectives 
of our overall aims and this is now being further enhanced to meet the organisational needs 
going forward. 

 
 For example , we have developed and included the following definitions of types of workers 

we can now recognise and identify within our workforce  moving forward:  
  
 

  
 
4.1   The additional changes to the toolkit include the following: 
   

o The ability for all employees to request flexible working from day one  
o Different working patterns and styles  
o Retaining the ability to book annual leave in hours  
o A basic equipment offer of £100 per employee if they require equipment to enable 

them to work on an agile basis   
o An informal and formal application process  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Work 
style 

Description 

Fixed  Workplace based employees who operate from an office or shared work 
setting i.e. Care Homes. A fixed worker will typically remain at one place 
of work for the majority of their time.  

Internally 
Mobile 

The role is not tied down to one particular location and supports the 
internal functions of the council.  Internally mobile employees can 
successfully and regularly carry out their activities from a mixture of 
appropriate facilities.  For example, to attend meetings, work from home, 
council buildings or on the move according to the needs of the job that 
day.   

Externally 
Mobile 

The role directly supports the external services provided by the council 
and the majority of time is spent visiting people, attending meetings or 
carrying out work across various external sites e.g. Social Workers.  
Depending on the needs of the service, externally mobile employees can 
carry out work from a variety of locations including Council buildings, the 
premises of service users, community based locations or from home.  

Home 
Based 

Home based employees carry out the majority of their work at home.  
However, they are still required to attend meetings, supervisions etc in 
Council premises.  For these employees their home becomes the 
contractual place of work.   

Page 48



3 
 

 
4.2   We are working with managers and trade union colleagues to support employees to return 

safely back to the office. The removal of the restrictions does mean amending and revising 
risk assessments accordingly but also recognising some of the experiences from the last 
two years and learning from it, so the approach that is taken is a pragmatic and sensible 
one.  

 
     Work is taking place to amend policies and procedures to continue support agile working 

moving forward. We recognise that besides the workforce wish for this to remain, agile 
working forms part of recruitment and retention as offering an agile working package is an 
expectation of employers.   

 
     Estates and Facilities have kept desks which are at a socially distant space, far more 

collaborative working spaces available are now available. 17 of our larger meeting rooms 
across Friargate, Broadgate House, Council House and Whitley Depot have been equipped 
with full agile/hybrid meeting capability. There is a plan to equip 9 further rooms in this way 
over the coming months. Technology such as USB speakers are available to request for 
staff to be able to run informal hybrid meetings in smaller meeting spaces such this be 
required.  

 
Included below are some Case Studies on how the organisation and teams have adapted     
over the last two years   

  
 

 
 

 

Page 49



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 50



5 
 

Wider Impact of Changed Working Practices  

1. Employee Relations Casework  

It should also be noted that during this time formal employee relations casework has 

decreased significantly in the last two-year period as outlined in the analysis below:  

 

We are continuing to develop our reporting and monitoring casework using Selenity, the 

casework management system. The reporting functions within Selenity afford us the 

opportunity to easily gather data and identify any areas of concern. The newly formed 

Employee Relations team are continuing to work closely with trade union colleagues to 

resolve casework (where appropriate) informally and coaching managers to take a more 

“just culture” approach.  

The “Just Culture” approach is a mechanism to deal with concerns regarding employees 

that promotes fairness, openness and learning culture which gives employees confidence 

to speak up when errors occur, rather than a blame culture.  

We will be developing this further over the next 12 months.  

Sickness Absence  

Absence dropped during the pandemic which we hoped to sustain; however it has been 

noted over the last 3 months there has been a continuous rise in absence levels, with the 

top reason over the last three months being stress, anxiety, depression.  

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Disciplinary Grievance Probation

Formal Employee Relations Casework 

2019/2020 2020/2021

Page 51



6 
 

 

 

Occupational Health 

Occupational health figures below the volume of activity they are undertaking to support 

the management of health and well-being in the workplace. 

Health assessments – pre-employment 2052 

Health assessments – sickness absence 1762 

GP reports assessment and response 105 

Health Surveillance 116 

Vaccination programme                 Hep B/Flu 

(including DNAs)                                                

851 

Counselling sessions 3504 

Workplace assessments 14 

Case conferences 18 

In November 2021 we launched the new Enabling Attendance process that replaces the 

previous ‘Promoting Health at Work Policy’. This is a joint policy that has been drafted by 

Officers and Trade Union colleagues. The policy focuses more on employees as individuals 

and enables managers more autonomy to support employees and manage their employees 

health based on their circumstances and offer a flexible approach to managing absence. 

Over 375 Managers have received training and the HR Team continue to offer targeted 

training and support to managers to embed the policy and this different way of working.  

Occupational Health continue to offer musculoskeletal clinics, podiatry and wider health 

and wellbeing initiatives. There is a 12-month wellbeing plan which is regularly reviewed 

Page 52



7 
 

through the internal health and well-being group which is made up of HR , Trade Union 

colleagues and Public Health.  

The plan has overseen and supported the following ; 

 42 wellbeing events were created , including , Cycling in the Park, Macmillan craft 

auction, suicide prevention awareness, eye care, craft clubs, and Yoga 

 Wellbeing Screening Clinics starting in March- Wellbeing Wednesdays 

 188 managers have been trained in Menopause Awareness – 70% of the workforce 

are female, with 50 % of staff being over aged 50 so this is very relevant. 

 Wellbeing Champions and Mental Health First Aid Responder programmes 

continued 

 The ‘Be Safe, Be Healthy, Be Well’ Newsletter delivered current wellbeing advice 

on a monthly basis and also now includes a ‘green’ item. 

Mental Health first aid training is still being offered to managers with 327 being trained in 

the last year. This has recently been extended wider so there is adequate knowledge to 

support employees/colleagues as well as gain confidence in supporting and managing 

those with mental health conditions in the workplace. Internal counselling services and 

external Employee Assistance Programme remain available with referrals for counselling 

services continuing to rise.   

However , there are concerns that despite all the work to date stress anxiety and depression 

we do not seem to make any significant in-roads into the absence levels. The health and 

well-being group are having a single subject meeting in March to see what more can be 

done to improve our support and reduce related absence.  

5. Next Steps  
 

5.1In creating a flexible working toolkit it enables the organisation to recognise that as an 
employer we continue to support employees work life balance, health and wellbeing and 
enable Coventry to be an employer of choice. Maintaining flexibility will be essential to 
attract talent and young people as that is their expectation of an employer now.  

 
     The flexible working toolkit and application form has been formally consulted on with trade 

union colleagues and will be formally signed off in JCNC in April. Over the next four weeks 
Transformation, Web Editors and HR will work to create the content pages for the intranet 
to launch the toolkit along with training and guidance for managers in April once it has been 
formally ratified.  

 
5.2  We will continue to monitor employee relations casework and work collaboratively with 

trade union colleagues to resolve casework informally where appropriate. The Disciplinary, 
Grievance and Dignity at work policies are scheduled to be reviewed during March and 
April with trade union colleagues which will further support the work in embedding a “just 
culture” approach continuing to reduce formal casework further.  

 
5.3 The HR Business Partners will continue to support and coach managers to enable them 

to manage absence more effectively in the workplace and embed the new policy further.  
Occupational Health, Safety and Well-Being with the support of the health and well-being 
group will continue to work creatively to support the wider well-being agenda with an 
emphasis on mental health in particular.  

    
     

Susana Newing 
Director of HR 
March 2022 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



SB1 Work Programme 2021/22 

1 
 

 
Please see page 2 onwards for background to items 
 

7th July 2021 

- Digital Update 
- Customer Services 

15th September 2021 

- Reserves Balances 
- ICT & Digital Updates – Asset Register & System Monitoring 

13th October 2021 

- Workforce Diversity and Inclusion 
- New Ways of Working 

1st December 2021 

- Medium Term Financial Strategy 
- Financial Impact of COVID-19 

19th January 2021 (moved from 26th January) 

- Coventry Connects 
- Financial Management Code 

30th March 2021 

- Flexible and Agile Working Update 
- Coventry City Council Apprenticeship update 

2022/2023 

- Digital Inclusion 
- Transformation 
- Financial Resilience Assessment 
- CIPFA Financial Management Code 
- Workforce Diversity and Inclusion 

 

Last updated 18/03/22 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



SB1 Work Programme 2021/22 

2 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ Lead 
Officer 

7th July 2021 
 

- Digital Update To provide the Board with the opportunity to scrutinise the work 
being done on Digital. 

Cllr Brown/ Cllr 
Hetherton/ Cllr Lloyd  

 - Customer Services To provide an update the performance of customer service, 
including the impact of COVID-19 on service delivery. 

Cllr Brown/  

15th 
September 
2021 

- Reserves Balances To receive an update on the position of Council Reserves and 
identify recommendations for the Cabinet Member. 

Cllr Brown/               
Paul Jennings 

 - ICT & Digital Updates – 
Asset Register & System 
Monitoring 

To review the position with regards to ICT & Digital assets and 
the approach to monitoring uptime of systems. 

Cllr Hetherton/Paul 
Ward 

13th October 
2021 

- Workforce Diversity and 
Inclusion 

To include scrutiny of the actions to enhance workforce diversity 
and inclusion including the Workforce Diversity & Inclusion 
Strategy. 

Cllr Brown/ Grace 
Haynes 

 - New Ways of Working To consider new ways of working at CCC following acceleration 
of the programme post Covid-19. Customer Service Directorate, 
Children’s Services and a range of directorates. Including 
training and development. 

Cllr Brown/ Cllr 
Hetherton / Susanna 
Newing 

1st 
December 
2021 

- Medium Term Financial 
Strategy  

To discuss the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy prior 
to its approval through the political process. 
Please note the date of the meeting will move to enable SB1 to 
consider the MTFS before it goes to Cabinet. Normal reporting 
timescales have changed due to Covid-19. 

Cllr Brown /Barry 
Hastie/ Paul Jennings 

 - Financial Impact of 
COVID-19   

To receive an update on the item first taken in October 2020 
regarding the financial impact of COVID-19. 

Cllr Brown/ Barry 
Hastie/ Paul Jennings 

19th January 
2021 (moved 
from 26th 
January) 

- Coventry Connects To include Customer Service channels including the feedback 
loop for customers and councillors and continuous 
improvement. Follows on from the meeting on 7th July.  

Cllr Brown/  
Adrienne Bellingeri/ 
Paul Ward 

 - Financial Management 
Code 

The Financial Management Code (FM Code) provides guidance 
for good and sustainable financial management in local 

Cllr Brown/ Barry 
Hastie/ Paul Jennings 

P
age 56



SB1 Work Programme 2021/22 

3 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ Lead 
Officer 

authorities. By complying with the principles and standards 
within the code authorities will be able to demonstrate their 
financial sustainability. This item will examine Coventry’s 
progress towards meeting the FM Code principles.  

30th March 
2021 

- Flexible and Agile 
Working Update 

To include the impacts on sickness absence, mental health and 
well-being of staff and expectations of flexible working. 

Cllr Brown/ Susannah 
Newing 
 

 - Coventry City Council 
Apprenticeship update 

To provide information on workforce apprenticeships including 
National Apprenticeship Week and work taking place with 
schools. 

Cllr Brown/ Grace 
Haynes 

2022/2023 - Digital Inclusion This item was identified at the meeting on 7th July 2021 Cllr Brown/ Paul Ward 

 - Transformation  To scrutinise the delivery of transformation linked to the revised 
One Coventry Plan. 

Cllr Brown/ Michelle 
McGinty 

 - Financial Resilience 
Assessment 

To receive an interim report on the outcome of the financial 
resilience assessment. 

Cllr Brown/ Barry 
Hastie/ Paul Jennings 

 - CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 

To receive an update on the Financial Management Code which 
was first considered in January 2022. 

Cllr Brown/ Barry 
Hastie/ Paul Jennings 

 - Workforce Diversity and 
Inclusion 

To update on progress on Workforce Diversity and Inclusion 
following the meeting in October 2021. 

Cllr Brown/ Grace 
Haynes 

 

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2022
	4 Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update
	Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update - Appendix 1 - Apprenticeship Strategy 2020-2022
	Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update - Appendix 2 - Apprenticeship Info
	Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update - Appendix 3 - Apprentice Case Studies
	Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update - Appendix 4 - Apprenticeship Levy Transfer Case Study 2
	Coventry City Council Apprenticeship Update - Appendix 5 - Apprenticeship Levy Transfer Case Study 1

	5 Agile and Flexible Working Update
	6 Work Programme and Outstanding Issues

